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Board Of Directors Report

Dear Shareholders,

We have a pleasure in presenting 2019 Board of Directors Report. In 2019, the focus was to enhance
customer satisfaction, cost effectiveness, collection and improvement of technological platforms.
Key Financial Highlights
Gross written contributions grew by AED 7 million from AED 599 million of 2018 to AED606 million in
2019, despite challenging market conditions.
Net Earned Contribution increased by AED 137 million from AED 258 million in 2018.
Total Assets for the period were AED 1,102 million, 12% higher than total assets for 2018AED 981 million,
reflecting a sustained growth trajectory.

2019 was a challenging year. The Company had to absorb extraordinary costs associated with developing
the digital capabilities and acquisition of Al Hilal Takaful which was no longer proceeded. We have
re-built the strategy towards our digital and cultural transformation to operate more efficiently. We
remain committed to driving growth through ongoing commercial, operational and strategic initiatives
across our business within the UAE.

To support this, we continue to invest in our infrastructure, human capital and distribution partnerships by
continuously seeking unconventional channels as a market innovator. The mandatory health insurance in
the UAE will continue to be central to this growth, with Takaful Emarat serving as one of the Participating
Insurer approved by the Dubai Health Authority, and the first Insurer to provide a digital channel for its
customer to purchase this unique product. Takaful Emarat is therefore strategically well-positioned to
capitalize on this significant market opportunity. We continue to invest in all of our employees, as well as
our on-going Emiratization Programme.

Board of Directors Recommendations to Shareholders:
Review and approve Board of Directors Report for 2019
Review and approve financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
Discharge the auditors from their liabilities arising out of audit work and appoint auditors for the year
2020.
Discharge Board of Directors from their liabilities arising out from their responsibilities for the year
2019.

To the best of our knowledge, the financial statements for the year ended 2019 fairly presents in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operation and cash flows of the company as of,
and for, the periods presented in the periodic report. We also present you Related Party Transactions
entered by the Company during the period in an Appendix to the report.

Looking ahead to 2020, Takaful Emarat is well positioned for future growth. Our focus will continue on
developing digital platforms while simultaneously increasing our profitability and revenue stream.

On behalf of Takaful Emarat’s management and shareholders, the Board of Directors expresses its
sincere appreciation and utmost gratitude to His Highness Sheikh Mohammed bin Rashid Al Maktoum,
Vice President and Prime Minister of the UAE and Ruler of Dubai, for his continued support of the UAE’s
business community and its development.

Abdulla Al Murar
Chairman
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Appendix To Board of Directors Report
Related Party Transactions And Balances

Related parties represent, major shareholders, directors and key management personnel
of the Group, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such
parties. The pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s
management.

The significant balances outstanding at 31 December in respect of related parties included
in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

2019 2018
AED AED
Affiliates of major shareholders:
Due from equity investments - 3,321,526
Deposit 7,373,754 -
Outstanding claims 786,445 1,657,198
Equity Investments — quoted 3,775,038 5,139,436

The income and expenses in respect of related parties included in the consolidated
financial statements are as follows:

2019 2018

AED AED
Affiliates of major shareholders:
Contributions 6,066,169 8,831,156
Claims 2,834,185 900,612
Compensation of the key management personnel is as follows:

2019 2018

AED AED
Short term employee benefits 4,607,569 6,535,396
End of service benefits 496,813 571573

5,104,382 7,106,969

Outstanding balances at the year-end arise in the normal course of business. For the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Group has not recorded any
impairment of amounts owed by related parties.

Annual Report 2019 < ) ’
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In the Name of God, the Most Gracious, the Most Merciful

Shariah Supervisory Board Report for the Financial Year ended 31st of December 2019
To the General Assembly of the Company Shareholders

Praise to Allah and Peace be upon our Prophet Muhammad

We the Shariah Supervisory Board (the Board) of Takaful Emarat:

Dr. Abdul Sattar Abu Ghuddah
Abdul Nasser Al Mannaei

Mufti Muhammad Hassan Kaleem

In line with Article (63) of the Company’s Articles of Association, we present the following report about
the activities and accounts of the Company:

The Board reviewed the basis on which the Company’s business has been conducted, the financial
results, the investments and the products it has engaged in during the financial year ending on December
31,2019, samples of the Takaful (Insurance) policies entered into by the Company and the new contracts
and agreements signed by the Company and other activities in order to make the opinion on whether
the Company is compliant with the Islamic provisions and principles, the advisory opinions, resolutions
and directives issued by the Board.

Ensuring the Company’s compliance with the Islamic provisions and principles is the responsibility of
the management that is in charge of the implementation of the Company activities in accordance with
its Articles of Association and in line with Islamic provisions and principles. The Board responsibility is
limited to making an independent Shariah opinion based on our audit of the documents and to report
accordingly.

The Board audited the Company’s financial results and its financial structure by auditing the balance
sheet, income statement and statement of revenues and expenses. The Board have also audited the
Company investments, as well as the details of the Takaful policies dealt with in different types of Takaful
insurance. The Board identified updates on re-insurance or re-Takaful, and the authorities with whom
such agreements were concluded.

The Board were provided with the adequate information and interpretations to give reasonable
assurance that the Company did not violate the Islamic provisions and principles in general and within
the activities the Board examined.

Our Opinion:

1. The Company adhered in its financial structure in separating between the account of the policy
holders and the shareholders’ account, which is fundamental in Takaful insurance. The Company
prepared its financial statements for the financial year ending on December 31, 2019 in accordance
with the applicable model of the Shariah Standards according to which the Company should prepare
its financial statements (under the prevailing accounting regulations) a model that expresses reality
and nature of the Takaful business and its financial structure.

2. The Company only withheld from the policyholders the prescribed administration charges or less
in addition to a common portion of the profit of this account being Modaraba. The Company has
disclosed the charges at its policy documents for the policyholders as it is a Shariah requirement for
Wakala and Modaraba.
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The Company provided Qard Hasan to tackle the interim deficit in Takaful portfolio.

4. The products that the Company has offered and the investment from the policyholder fund that the
Company made are acceptable in light of Shariah principles and our audit.

5. The Company confirmed that they entered into re-insurance agreements in accordance with our
guidelines. We emphasized to minimize the re-insurance with traditional companies as possible, with
priority given to the mandatory and optional re-insurance with the Islamic companies based on the
Islamic insurance.

6. The Board reviewed the samples of Takaful policy documents used by the Company and found that

they are in compliance with the Shariah principles.

The Board hereby announces that for 2019 the amount of Zakat due for each share is AED 0.00243.

8. The Board has provided the training material for the training to be provided to employees for 2019
on Takaful insurance and its Shariah principles, with a view to enhance the business and to achieve
the Company’s objectives in compliance with the Islamic provisions.

9. The Board confirmed that the Company shall continue to use the document or instrument or contracts

approved by the Board and in case of any significant change it shall be submitted to the Board again

for approval.

N

The Board hereby issues this report and appreciated the Company’s effort in complying with the rules
and principles of Islamic Shariah.

May God guide the Company and those in charged with authority therein.
And in closing: “Praise be to Allah, the Cherisher and Sustainer of the worlds”

W

Dr. Abdul Sattar Abu Ghuddah
Chairman
Sharia Supervisory Board
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC)
(the “Company™) and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as the “Group”), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “IESBA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

Valuation of takaful contract liabilities and retakaful assets (vefer to note 6 of the consolidated
financial statements)

The work that we performed to address the
valuation of takaful contract liabilities included the

We focused on this balance because of the
complexity involved in the estimation process,
and the significant judgements

management and the directors make in
determining the appropriateness and adequacy
of the liability. The liabilities which includes
claims reported and not settled, incurred but
not reported and mathematical reserve are
based on a best-estimate of the ultimate cost of
all claims incurred but not settled at a given
date, whether reported or not, together with the
related claims handling costs. A range of
methods may be used to determine these
provisions. Underlying these methods are a
number of explicit or implicit assumptions
relating to the expected settlement amount and
settlement patterns of claims.

Retakaful assets are recognised when the
related gross insurance liability is recognised
according to the terms of the relevant retakaful
contracts and their recoverability is subject to
the probability of default and probable losses
in the event of default by respective retakaful
counterparties.

The actuarial valuation of takaful contract
liabilities and retakaful assets was carried out
by an independent actuary.

Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements
describes the elements that make up the takaful
contract liabilities and retakaful contract assets
balance.

that following procedures:

The evaluation and testing of key controls
around the claims handling and reserve setting
processes of the Group along with the
recognition and release of retakaful assets.
We examined evidence of the operation of
controls over the valuation of individual
claims reserves, such as large loss review
controls and internal peer reviews (whereby
reviewers examine documentation supporting
claims reserves and consider if the amount
recorded in the consolidated financial
statements is valued appropriately).

We checked samples of claims reserves and
the respective share of retakaful assets,
through comparing the estimated amount of
the reserve to appropriate documentation,
such as reports from third party
administrators.

We reviewed management’s reconciliation of
the underlying Group data recorded in the
policy administration systems with the data
used in the actuarial reserving calculations.
We tied the takaful contract liabilities and
retakaful assets as recommended by the
Group’s actuary to the liabilities and assets in
the consolidated financial statements.

We involved our actuarial specialist team
members, to apply industry knowledge and
experience and we compared the
methodology, models and assumptions used
against recognised actuarial practices.

We obtained the retakaful treaty summary for
the year and verified the details in the
summary to the respective agreements.

We reviewed the ratios of retakaful assets to
related takaful contact liabilities to identify
any variance from retakaful treaty
arrangements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

Revenue recognition (refer to note 19 of the consolidated financial statements)

Gross contributions written comprise the total The work that we performed to address this key
contributions receivable for the whole period audit matter included the following procedures:
of cover provided by contracts entered into + We assessed whether the Group’s revenue

during the accounting period, and are recognition policies complied with IFRS and
recognised on the date on which the policy tested the implementation of those policies.
commences. At the end of each year, a Specifically, we considered whether the
proportion of net retained contributions of the contributions on insurance policies are
medical and life business is provided for to accounted for on the date of inception of
cover portions of risk which have not expired policies, by testing a sample of revenue items
at the reporting date. The reserves are required to insurance contracts, with a specific focus
to be calculated in accordance with the on transactions which occurred near 31
requirements of the Insurance Law relating to December 2019.
insurance companies. ¢ We evaluated the relevant IT systems and
tested the operating effectiveness of the
The actuarial valuation of unearned internal controls over the recording of revenue
contributions reserve and the retakaful share in the correct period.
thereof was carried out by an independent + We compared the unearned contributions
actuary. reserve balance as per the consolidated

financial statements to the reserve balance
computed by the Group’s actuary.

* We recalculated the unearned contributions
reserve based on the earning period of
insurance contracts existing as of 31
December 2019.

*  We obtained an understanding and reviewed
the accounting treatment for contributions
received based on the product classification of
the policy.

»  We also tested a risk based sample of journal
entries posted to revenue accounts to identify
any unusual or irregular items, and we tested
the reconciliations between the policy master
file and its financial ledgers.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Recoverability of takaful receivables (refer to note 5 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Group has amounts of takaful receivables

in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements). The key associated risk is the
recoverability of receivables. Management’s
related provision is subjective and is
influenced by assumptions concerning the
probability of default and probable losses in
the event of default.

The work that we performed to address this key
that are overdue and not impaired (as disclosed audit matter included the following procedures:

We compared the historical provision for
bad debts to the actual amounts written off,
to determine whether the management’s
estimation techniques were reasonable.

We also considered the adequacy of
provisions for bad debts for significant
customers, taking into account specific
credit risk assessments for each customer
based on time past due, the existence of any
disputes over the balance outstanding, the
history of settlement of receivables and the
existence of any liabilities with the same

counterparties which reduce the net
exposure.
We discussed with management and

reviewed correspondences, where relevant,
to identify any disputes and assess whether
appropriately considered in the bad debt
provision.

We verified the netting off of retakaful
receivable and payable balances and
ensured the same is appropriately disclosed.

Valuation of unquoted investments (vefer to note 4 of the consolidated financial statements)

Given the ongoing market volatility and The work that we performed to address this key
audit matter included the following procedures:

macroeconomic  uncertainty,  investment
valuation continues to be an area of inherent
risk. The risk is not uniform for all investment
types, and is greatest where the investments are
hard to value because quoted prices are not
readily available.

Reviewed the valuation working provided
by the client.

We obtained and reviewed the supporting
documents for the above working.

We assessed both the methodology and
assumptions used by management in the
calculation of the year end values.

We reviewed the latest performance of the
investment company and assessed whether
the valuation is appropriate as compared to
the performance of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) (continued)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)
Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

Measurement of acquisition costs on takaful life policies (vefer to note 8 of the consolidated
financial statements)

We focused on this area because of the The work that we performed to address this key
complexity involved in the estimation process, audit matter included the following procedures:

and the significant judgements that * We carried out procedures, on a sample
management make with respect to the basis, to test whether details of the specific
measurement of acquisition costs on takaful policies provided to the external actuary by
life policies and in determining the effective the Group agreed to the underlying policy
term of takaful life policies. documents.

+  Wealso carried out procedures, on a sample
basis, to check the completeness and
accuracy of the policy data provided to the
external actuary. In addition, on a sample
basis, we recalculated the amount of
acquisition costs to be deferred as at year
end and the corresponding amortization
charge recorded in the income statement.

The Group acertains the effective term of the
life policies and the model is reviewed by the
external actuary for appropriateness of the
effective term of the life policies. The Group is
amortising the acquisition costs in the same
proportion as the fee income for each year over
the effective term of the takaful life policies.

Recognition of retakaful share of claims (refer to note 19 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Group has not met the minimum volume The work that we performed to address this key
requirement as per its treaty agreement with a audit matter included the following procedures:

reinsurer, resulting in a restructuring of the +  We obtained and reviewed the details of the
treaty terms, and reversing previously recorded original and revised terms of the treaty
retakaful share of claims incurred which agreement.

amounted to AED 13.6 million. There is a risk + We tested the completeness and accuracy of
that profits are overstated if incorrect amount the premiums and claims data supporting
of retakaful share of claims incurred is the adjustment made by the Group.
recognized. * We have obtained the confirmation of the

balances from the reinsurer.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the Directors’
report and Shariah Board report (but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report. We expect to
obtain the remaining sections of the Group’s 2019 Annual Report after the date of our auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the
other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and in compliance with
the applicable provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association and the UAE Federal Law No. (2)
of 2015 and the UAE Federal Law No. (6) of 2007 and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, we report that:

i)  the Company has maintained proper books of account;

ii)  we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

iii) the consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects,
with the applicable provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company and the UAE

Federal Law No. (2) 0of2015;

iv) the consolidated financial information included in the Directors’ report is consistent with the
books of account and records of the Group;

v)  investments in shares and stocks during the year ended 31 December 2019, are disclosed in note
4 to the consolidated financial statements;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) (continued)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements (continued)

vi) note 28 reflect material related party transactions and the terms under which they were
conducted;

vii) based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention
which causes us to believe that the Company has contravened during the financial year ended
31 December 2019 any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 or
its Articles of Association which would have a material impact on its activities or its consolidated
financial position; and

viii) note 36 to the consolidated financial statements reflects the social contributions made during the
year.

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (6) of 2007, as amended, we report that we have

obtained all the information and explanation we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit.
For further disclosure on solvency ratios, refer to notes 4 and 34.

_For Emst-&Young

f:-. f)___.-\.___/" T i .

Signed by:

Ashraf Abu-Sharkh
Partner

Registration No. 690

10 March 2020

Dubai, United Arab Emirates
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TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) and its subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Notes AED AED
TAKAFUL OPERATIONS’ ASSETS
Cash and bank balances 3 57,583,140 60,939,584
Financial instruments 4 300,952,361 178,577,125
Takaful receivables and other assets 5 207,978,959 130,629,255
Retakaful contract assets 6 222,171,164 241,259,789
Investment properties 7 41,390,000 38,921,256
Deposit 7,373,754 -
Deferred policy acquisition cost 8 72,120,966 63,563,930
Receivable from shareholders - 2,995,276
TOTAL TAKAFUL OPERATIONS’ ASSETS 909,570,344 716,886,215
SHAREHOLDERS’ ASSETS
Cash and bank balances 3 11,796,580 62,748,453
Financial instruments 4 24,079,343 107,294,556
Other receivables 5 25,394,182 34,526,335
Statutory deposit 9 4,000,000 4,000,000
Property and equipment 10 50,528,844 51,048,764
Intangible assets 11 4,182,116 4,897,937
Receivable from policyholders 73,240,962 -
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ ASSETS 193,222,027 264,516,045
TOTAL ASSETS 1,102,792,371 981,402,260
TAKAFUL OPERATIONS’ LIABILITIES AND DEFICIT
Takaful operations liabilities
Takaful and other payables 12 190,030,708 193,732,164
Takaful contract liabilities 6 619,550,234 492,248,900
Payable to shareholders 73,240,962 -
TOTAL TAKAFUL OPERATIONS’ LIABILITIES 882,821,904 685,981,064
DEFICIT IN POLICYHOLDERS’ FUND AND
QARD HASSAN FROM SHAREHOLDERS
Deficit in policyholders’ fund 31 (9,268,009) (30,905,151)
Qard Hassan from shareholders 31 9,268,009 30,905,151
NET DEFICIT IN POLICYHOLDERS’
FUND AND QARD HASSAN FROM SHAREHOLDERS - -
TOTAL TAKAFUL OPERATIONS’ LIABILITIES AND DEFICIT 882,821,904 685,981,064

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
9
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TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) and its subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

As at 31 December 2019

Notes

SHAREHOLDERS’ LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

SHAREHOLDERS’ LIABILITIES

Takaful and other payables 12
Borrowings 13
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 14
Payable to policyholders

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS’ AND POLICYHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Share capital 15
Statutory reserve 16

Accumulated losses
Cumulative changes in tair value of investments — shareholders 4 (b)
Cumulative changes in fair value of investments — policyholders 4 (b)

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND POLICYHOLDERS’ EQUITY

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

TOTAL TAKAFUL OPERATIONS’ LIABILITIES AND
DEFICIT AND SHAREHOLDERS’ LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Dr. Nooraldeen Subhi Ahmed Atatreh
Deputy Chairman

2019 2018
AED AED
58,209,041 71,718,028
40,322,432 53,234,001
2,914,064 2,443,215
E 2,995,276
101,445,537 130,390,520
150,000,000 150,000,000
6,526,302 6,526,302
(55.481,803)  (7,135.626)
- 15,640,000
17,480,431 n
118,524,930 165,030,676
219,970,467 295,421,196
1,102,792,371 981,402,260
——

Mr. Ajit Vijay Joshi
Board Member
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TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) and its subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Attributable to policyholders:
Gross contribution written
Changes in unearned contributions

Takaful contributions earned

Retakaful contributions
Change in unearned contributions

Retakaful contributions ceded

Net earned contributions

Gross claims incurred
Retakaful share of claims incurred

Net claims incurred

Change in reserves
Net change in fair value of policyholders investment
linked contracts

Net takaful income

Wakalah fees
Investment loss, net
Change in fair value of investment property

Net (deficit)/ surplus from takaful operations

Attributable to shareholders:

Wakalah fees from policyholders

Investment income, net

Other income

Commission incurred

General and administrative expenses

(Provision for)/ recovery of Qard Hassan to policyholders’ fund

(LOSS)/ PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Basic and diluted (loss)/ profit per share

Notes

19
19

19

19

19

19

19

20

20

20

21

21

22
23

22
23
24

25
31

26

2019 2018
AED AED
606,212,168 599,067,782
13,380,806  (68,134,216)
619,592,974 530,933,566
(198,174,499)  (321,049,958)
(26,633,866) 48,373,370
(224,808,365)  (272,676,588)
394,784,609 258,256,978
(441,500,346)  (382,100,789)
188,872,007 264,295,699
(252,628,339)  (117,805,090)
(44,475,348)  (54,485,363)
(20,131,291) 5,158,552
77,549,631 91,125,077
(82,137,697)  (77,922,845)
(2,871,839) (2,284,678)
(1,808,104) (1,040,000)
(9,268,009) 9,877,554
82,137,697 77,922,845
13,354,175 34,160,387
9,283,948 16,200,236
(46,087,549)  (36,851,006)
(87,266,439)  (87,264,972)
(9,268,009) 9,877,554
(37,846,177) 14,045,044
(0.25) 0.09

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) and its subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Note AED AED
(Loss)/ profit for the period
attributable to shareholders (37,846,177) 14,045,044
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other comprehensive income that could
be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods
Net unrealised gain on
available-for-sale investments 1,840,431 15,640,000
Other comprehensive income for the year 4 (b) 1,840,431 15,640,000
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ INCOME FOR THE YEAR (36,005,746) 29,685,044

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) and its subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/ profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation of property and equipment
and intangible assets 10,11
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Loss on disposal/write off of intangible assets 11
Realised loss/ (gain) on sale of investments at fair value
through profit or loss 23
Gain on revaluation of investments carried at fair value
through profit or loss
Provision for doubtful debts
Change in fair value of investment properties
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

—_
EENENS RV S

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in retakaful contract assets
Changes in takaful receivables and other assets
Changes in deferred policy acquisition cost
Changes in takaful contract liabilities
Changes in takaful and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Employees’ end of service benefits paid 14

Net cash generated from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Change in deposits with maturity of more than three months
Purchase of investments at fair value through profit or loss

Purchase of investments at fair value through OCI

Proceeds from sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss
Deposit

Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of property and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment

Addition to investments properties

Net cash used in investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid
Zakat payment
Borrowings 13
Net cash used in financing activities
(DECREASE)/ INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 3

2019 2018
AED AED
(37,846,177 14,045,044
4,439,203 3,587,818
93) -
6,692,645 1,236,037
1,421 (3,659,829)
(27,624,751)  (16,915,658)
2,196,414 6,086,618
1,808,104 1,040,000
2,368,068 413,904
(47,965,166) 5,833,934
19,088,625  (95,010,724)
(70,414,006) 4,478,826
(8,557,036) (13,597,298
127,301,334 142,739,581
(16,880,442) 57,088,698
2,573,309 101,533,017
(1,897,219) (516,058)
676,090 101,016,959
4,224,000 12,944,000
(127,129,408)  (225,379,363)
(16,921,470)
117,433,146 186,605,404
(7,373,754) -
(6,910,207) (3,408,919)
(2,986,551) (5,933,161)
744 8,000
(4,276,848) (1,188,827)
(27,018,878)  (53,274,336)
(10,500,000)  (12,375,000)
(329,960) (356,000)
(12,911,569) (5,285,999)
(23,741,529)  (18,016,999)
(50,084,317) 29,725,624
102,214,037 72,488,413
52,129,720 102,214,037

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) and its subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2019

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Takaful Emarat - Insurance (PSC), Dubai, United Arab Emirates (the “Company”) is a public stock company
incorporated in the Emirate of Dubai — United Arab Emirates, pursuant to decree No. 62 for the year 2007 issued by
the Ministry of Economy on 6 February, 2007, and is subject to the provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. 2 of
2015 ("Companies Law").

The Company carries out takaful activities in Health Insurance, Life Insurance and Credit and Saving Insurance in
accordance with the Islamic Sharia’a and within the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company.

The registered address of the Company is P.O. Box 64341, Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

During 2017, the Company established a new subsidiary, Modern Tech Investment, for investment purposes. These
consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary (collectively
referred to as the “Group”).

On 2018, the Company has received the approval from the Insurance Authority for the acquisition of all shares of Al
Hilal Takaful PSC. However, on 24 April 2019, the Group has notified the Dubai Financial market that the proposed
acquisition of Al Hilal Takaful, originally announced in 2017, will no longer proceed.

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the board of directors on 8 March 2020.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

Accounting convention

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for the measurement
at fair value of financial assets carried at fair value. The consolidated financial statements have been presented in
UAE Dirhams (AED).

The Group presents its consolidated statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding
recovery or settlement within twelve months after the reporting date (no more than 12 months) and more than 12
months after the reporting date (more than 12 months) is presented in the respective notes.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and applicable requirements of
United Arab Emirates Laws.

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its investees that are
considered subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019. Subsidiaries are investees that the Group has control over. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:
e Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee)
e Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
o The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

15
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TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) and its subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2019

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

e The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting
policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-
controlling interest and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

The Group comprises of the Company and the under-mentioned subsidiary.

Country of
Subsidiary Principal activity incorporation Ownership
2019 2018
Modern Tech Investment Investment United Arab Emirates 99% 99%

Modern Tech Investment was established during the year ended 31 December 2017 for the purpose of holding
investments.

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

New standards and interpretations effective after 1 January 2019

The Group applied for the first time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The Group has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or
amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

The nature and the impact of each new standard and amendment is described below. Although these new standards

and amendments applied for the first time in 2019, they did not have a material impact on the annual consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

16
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TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) and its subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2019

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
New standards and interpretations effective after 1 January 2019 (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
Contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement and
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet
model similar to the accounting for finance leases under IAS 17.

The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personel computers)
and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognize a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to
use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately
recognize the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees
will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease
term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments).
The lessee will generally recognize the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the
right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from accounting under IAS 17. Lessor will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases as
operating and finance leases.

The Group adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial application
of 1 January 2019. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying the standard recognised at the date of initial application. The Group elected to use the transition practical
expedient allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying IAS
17 and IFRIC 4 at the date of initial application. The Group also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease
contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option
(‘short-term leases’), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (‘low-value assets’). The
Group has assessed that the adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of IAS 12 Income Taxes. It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it
specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
Interpretation specifically addresses the following:

Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates
How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The Interpretation did not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Under IFRS 9, a debt instrument can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, provided that the contractual cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding’ (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held within the appropriate business model for that
classification. The amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of an event
or circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives
reasonable compensation for the early termination of the contract. These amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group as it intends to apply the temporary exemption from IFRS 9 and
therefore, continue to apply IAS 39 to its financial assets and liabilities as of 31 December 2019.
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TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) and its subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2019

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
New standards and interpretations effective after 1 January 2019 (continued)

Amendments to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to IAS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during
areporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the
annual reporting period, an entity is required to determine the current service cost for the remainder of the period after
the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to re-measure the net defined
benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event. An entity is
also required to determine the net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement using the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan
assets after that event, and the discount rate used to re-measure that net defined benefit liability (asset).

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as it did not have any plan
amendments, curtailments, or settlements during the period.

Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture to which
the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture
(long-term interests). This clarification is relevant because it implies that the expected credit loss model in IFRS 9
applies to such long-term interests.

The amendments also clarified that, in applying IFRS 9, an entity does not take account of any losses of the associate
or joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment, recognised as adjustments to the net investment in
the associate or joint venture that arise from applying IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements as the Group does not have long-term
interests in associates and joint ventures.

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle

* IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it applies the
requirements for a business combination achieved in stages, including re-measuring previously held interests in the
assets and liabilities of the joint operation at fair value. In doing so, the acquirer re-measures its entire previously held
interest in the joint operation.

An entity applies those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early application permitted.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as there is no transaction
where joint control is obtained.

* IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

An entity that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might obtain joint control of the
joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business as defined in I[FRS 3. The amendments
clarify that the previously held interests in that joint operation are not re-measured.

An entity applies those amendments to transactions in which it obtains joint control on or after the beginning of the
first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early application permitted.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as there is no transaction
where a joint control is obtained.
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TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) and its subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2019

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
New standards and interpretations effective after 1 January 2019 (continued)

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle (continued)

* IAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past transactions
or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity recognises the
income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where it
originally recognised those past transactions or events.

An entity applies the amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early
application permitted. When the entity first applies those amendments, it applies them to the income tax consequences
of dividends recognised on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

* IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop
a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

The entity applies the amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early application permitted.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these new and
amended standards and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

In May 2017, the TASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance
contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure, which replaces IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts. In contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering previous local
accounting policies for measurement purposes, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model (the general model) for
insurance contracts, supplemented by the variable fee approach for contracts with direct participation features that are
substantially investment-related service contracts, and the premium allocation approach mainly for short-duration
which typically applies to certain non-life insurance contracts.

The main features of the new accounting model for insurance contracts are, as follows:

e The measurement of the present value of future cash flows, incorporating an explicit risk adjustment,
remeasured every reporting period (the fulfilment cash flows)

e A Contractual Service Margin (CSM) that is equal and opposite to any day one gain in the fulfilment cash
flows of a group of contracts. The CSM represents the unearned profitability of the insurance contracts and
is recognised in profit or loss over the service period (i.e., coverage period)

e  Certain changes in the expected present value of future cash flows are adjusted against the CSM and thereby
recognised in profit or loss over the remaining contractual service period

e Theeffect of changes in discount rates will be reported in either profit or loss or other comprehensive income,
determined by an accounting policy choice

e The recognition of insurance revenue and insurance service expenses in the statement of comprehensive
income based on the concept of services provided during the period
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TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) and its subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2019

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

e Amounts that the policyholder will always receive, regardless of whether an insured event happens (non-
distinct investment components) are not presented in the income statement, but are recognised directly on
the balance sheet

o Insurance services results (earned revenue less incurred claims) are presented separately from the insurance
finance income or expense

e Extensive disclosures to provide information on the recognised amounts from insurance contracts and the
nature and extent of risks arising from these contracts

IFRS 17 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with comparative figures
required. Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the date it
first applies IFRS 17. Retrospective application is required. However, if full retrospective application for a group of
insurance contracts is impracticable, then the entity is required to choose either a modified retrospective approach or
a fair value approach. The Group is currently evaluating the expected impact.

Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a Business

In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to the definition of a business in IFRS 3 Business Combinations to
help entities determine whether an acquired set of activities and assets is a business or not. They clarify the minimum
requirements for a business, remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any
missing elements, add guidance to help entities assess whether an acquired process is substantive, narrow the
definitions of a business and of outputs, and introduce an optional fair value concentration test. New illustrative
examples were provided along with the amendments.

Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other events that occur on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material

In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to align the definition of ‘material” across the standards and
to clarify certain aspects of the definition. The new definition states that, ’Information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information
about a specific reporting entity.’

The amendments to the definition of material is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below:

Insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. Contracts under which the Group accept significant insurance
risk from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future
event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder are classified as insurance contracts. Insurance risk is
significant if an insured event could cause the Group to pay significant additional benefits due to happening of the
insured event compared to its non-happening.

Once a contract is classified as an insurance contract it remains classified as an insurance contract until all rights and
obligations are extinguished or expire.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Takaful contributions

Medical takaful contracts

Gross takaful contributions written comprise the total contributions receivable for the whole period of cover provided
by contracts entered into during the accounting period and are recognised on the date on which the policy commences.
Contributions include any adjustments arising in the accounting period for premiums receivable in respect of business
written in prior accounting periods. Contributions collected by intermediaries, but not yet received, are assessed
based on estimates from underwriting or past experience and are included in contributions written.

Life assurance contracts

In respect of the short term life assurance contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue (earned premiums)
proportionately over the period of coverage. The portion of the premium received in respect of in-force contracts that
relates to unexpired risks at the end of the reporting period is reported as the unearned premium liability. Premiums
are shown before the deduction of the commission.

In respect of long term life assurance contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue (earned premiums) when they
become payable by the contract holder. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission.

Premiums for group credit life policies are recognised when it is paid by the contract holder.

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in future is recorded when the premiums are
recognised.

The liability is based on the assumptions as to mortality, persistency, maintenance expenses and investment income
that are established at the time the contract is issued. A margin for adverse deviation is included in the assumptions.

Where a life assurance contract has a single premium or limited number of premium payments due over a significantly
shorter period than the period during which the benefits are provided, the excess of the premiums payable over the
valuation premiums is deferred and recognised as income in line with the decrease of unexpired insurance risk of the
contract in-force or for annuities in force, in line with the decrease of the amount of future benefits expected to be
paid.

The liabilities are recalculated at the end of each reporting period using the assumptions established at the inception
of the contract.

Claims and benefits payable to contract holders are recorded as expenses when they are incurred.

Takaful contributions earned

Earned takaful contributions are taken to income over the terms of the takaful contract to which they relate on a pro-
rata basis. Unearned takaful contributions represent the portion of net takaful contributions accounted for which relate
to periods of risk that extent beyond the end of the financial year; they are calculated based on a time apportionment
basis over the exposure to contracts. The change in the provision for unearned contributions is taken to the statement
of takaful operations and accumulated surplus in order to recognize revenue over the period to cover the takaful risks.

Retakaful contributions

Gross retakaful contributions comprise the total contributions payable for the whole cover provided by contracts
entered into during the period and are recognised on the date on which the policy incepts. Contributions include any
adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods.
Unearned reinsurance contributions are those proportions of contributions written in a year that relate to periods of
risk after the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance contributions are deferred over the term of the underlying direct
insurance policies for risks-attaching contracts and over the term of the reinsurance contract for losses occurring
contracts.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Wakalah fees
The Company manages the takaful operations on behalf of the policyholders for a wakalah fee which is recognised
on an accrual basis. A similar amount is shown as expense in statement of income attributable to policyholders.

Claims

Claims, comprising amounts payable to contract holders and third parties and related loss adjustment expenses, net
of salvage and other recoveries, are charged to income as incurred. Provision for outstanding claims reported is based
on estimates of the loss, which will eventually be payable on each unpaid claim, established by the management based
on current conditions, increased exposure, rising claims costs and the severity and frequency of recent claims, as
appropriate. Provision for incurred but not reported claims is included within additional reserve.

The Group generally estimates its claims based on previous experience. Any difference between the provisions at the
reporting date and settlements and provisions for the following year is included in the statement of takaful operations
for that year.

Retakaful share of claims incurred
Retakaful share of claims is recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised according to the terms
of the relevant contract.

Policy acquisition costs

Commissions and other costs directly related to the acquisition and renewal of takaful contracts are charged to the
consolidated statement of income when incurred. If the commission and associated costs are for services provided in
future periods then they are deferred and amortised over the life of the related takaful policy

Investment income

Profit from investment deposits is recognised on a time proportion basis. Dividend income is accounted for when the
right to receive payment is established. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference
between net sales proceeds and the weighted average cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

Liability adequacy test

At each consolidated statement of financial position date the Group assesses whether its recognised takaful liabilities
are adequate using current estimates of future cash flows under its takaful contracts. If that assessment shows that
the carrying amount of its takaful liabilities is inadequate in light of estimated future cash flows, the entire deficiency
is immediately recognised in income and an unexpired risk provision is created.

The Group does not discount its liability for unpaid claims as substantially all claims are expected to be paid within
one year of the consolidated statement of financial position date.

Foreign currency translation

The presentation currency is UAE Dirhams (AED). This is also the functional currency of the Group. Transactions in
foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange
ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction and are not subsequently restated. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. All foreign exchange differences are taken to the consolidated statement of income,
except when it relates to items when gains or losses are recognised directly in equity, the gain or loss is then recognised
net of the exchange component in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Segment reporting

For management purposes, the Company is organised into two business segments; takaful and investment operations.
The takaful operations comprise the takaful business undertaken by the Company on behalf of policyholders.
Investment operations comprise investments and cash management for the Company’s own account. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Segment reporting (continued)
Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss which in certain respects is measured differently from profit
or loss in the financial statements.

Except for Wakalah fees, allocation charges and Qard Hassan, no other inter-segment transactions occurred during
the year. Segment income, expenses and results include transactions between business segments which will then be
eliminated on consolidation.

Product classification

Takaful contracts are those contracts when the Group (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from
another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event
(the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Group determines whether it has
significant insurance risk, by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Takaful
contracts can also transfer financial risk.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer significant financial risk. Financial risk is the risk of a possible
future change in one or more of a specified interest rate, security price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index
of price or rates, a credit rating or credit index or other variable.

Once a contract has been classified as a takaful contract, it remains a takaful contract for the remainder of its lifetime,
even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this year, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or
expire. Investment contracts can however be reclassified as takaful contracts after inception, if insurance risk becomes
significant.

The Group issues long term takaful contracts with an investment linked component. The Group classifies such
contracts as takaful contracts based on significance of insurance risk. Takaful contracts with no significant insurance
risk are classified as investment contracts. As a general guideline, the Group defines as significant insurance risk the
possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event that is at least 10% more than the benefits
payable if the insured event did not occur.

For takaful contracts, contributions, surrenders and maturities, changes in fair values of underlying assets and changes
in reserves are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. For investment contracts, changes in fair values
of underlying assets and changes in reserves are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and
contributions and surrenders and maturities are directly recognised under investment contracts.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Replacement or major inspection costs are capitalised when incurred, if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the following classes of assets:

Building 22 years
Office equipment 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values, and useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of comprehensive
income in the year the asset is derecognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in the statement of comprehensive
income in the year in which they arise. Fair values are evaluated annually by an accredited external, independent
valuer, applying a valuation model recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses
on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in
the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment
property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change
in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment up to the date of change in use.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets represents software acquired by the Group which is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses, if any. Cost of the software represents the costs incurred to acquire and bring the software to use.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight line basis over the useful life of the software, from the date it is available for
use. The useful life of the software is estimated to be 5 years.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
when the asset is derecognised.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Group makes an estimate of the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Deferred acquisition costs (DAC)

Commissions that vary with and are related to the acquisition of new investment and takaful contracts are treated as
prepayments (DAC) to the extent that the commission relates to the future provision of services by the parties to
whom payments are made, when the degree of completeness of the service can be reliably measured and the Group
is confident of future economic benefit from the introduction acquired. Prepaid commission is expensed through
statement of comprehensive income over a period determined by policy features chosen by the contract holder
introduced in return for the commission payment. The periods over which it is expensed range from five to thirty
months. Commissions for which liability arises on completion of a significant act without the expectation of the
delivery of further services are recognised in expenses when incurred. For investment contract introductions where
costs are deferred, no costs are deferred beyond the point at which the introducer is considered to have fulfilled his
contractual obligations and is not expected or obliged to perform further services.

Trade and settlement date accounting

All “regular way” purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the “trade date”, i.e. the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

a. Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held to maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit
or loss, directly attributable transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or originated. Financial assets are
classified as at fair value through profit or loss where the Group’s documented investment strategy is to manage
financial investments on a fair value basis, because the related liabilities are also managed on this basis. The available-
for-sale and held to maturity categories are used when the relevant liability (including shareholders’ funds) is
passively managed and/or carried at amortised cost.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank balances, investments at fair value through profit and loss, takaful
receivables and other assets, and retakaful contract assets.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

25




.
takaful
emarat

TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC) and its subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2019

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial Instruments (continued)

a. Financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading and those designated upon initial recognition as at
FVPL. Investments typically bought with the intention to sell in the near future are classified as held for trading.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39. For investments to be designated as at FVPL, the
following criteria must be met:

e The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a different basis, or

e The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities, or both, which are managed
and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy

Subsequent to initial recognition, they are remeasured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Fair value
gains and losses’. Interest is accrued and presented in ‘Investment income’, using the effective interest rate (EIR).
Dividend income is recorded in ‘Investment income’ when the right to the payment has been established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost, using the EIR
method, less allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in ‘Investment
income’ in the statement of comprehensive income. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include equity investments and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
AFS are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and that may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses
recognised in OCI and credited to the AFS reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in other operating income, or the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative loss is reclassified from the AFS reserve to the statement of profit or loss in finance costs. Interest earned
whilst holding AFS financial assets is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

The group evaluates whether evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its AFS financial assets in the near
term is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and intention to hold
the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the AFS category, the fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its new
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on the asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or
loss over the remaining life of the investment using the EIR. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)
a. Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, when applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

o  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either:
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a specific financial
asset may be impaired. If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Impairment is determined as follows:

(a)  For assets carried at cost, impairment is the difference between carrying value and the present value of future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset;

(b)  For assets carried at amortised cost, impairment is the difference between carrying amount and the present
value of future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Cash and bank balances
Cash and bank balances comprise cash in hand, balances with banks and unrestricted deposits with a maturity of less
than 12 months from the date of placement.

For the purpose of the cash flows statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, balances with banks
and unrestricted deposits with a maturity of less than three months from the date of placement.

Takaful receivables

Takaful receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition, takaful receivables are measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method. The carrying value of takaful receivables is reviewed for impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, with the impairment loss recorded
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Insurance receivables are derecognised when the derecognition criteria for financial assets have been met.
b. Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include takaful and other payables, takaful contract liabilities and borrowings.
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b. Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss includes financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on designated
or held for trading liabilities are recognised in fair value gains and losses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

The Group has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through profit and loss upon initial recognition.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings, and issued notes are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance cost in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Takaful contract liabilities

(i) Unearned contributions

Unearned contributions are those proportions of contributions written in a year that relate to period of risk after the
reporting date. Unearned contribution is calculated on a daily prorate basis or “1/365” method. The proportion
attributable to subsequent year is deferred as a provision for unearned contributions.

(ii)  Claims incurred but not reported
A provision is made for the estimated excess of potential claims over unearned contributions and for claims incurred
but not reported at the financial position date.

The reserves represent the management’s best estimates on the basis of:
a) claims reported during the year

b) delay in reporting these claims

¢) claims handling provision

(iii)  Claims reported and unsettled

Outstanding claims are recognised when claims are intimated. Outstanding claims reported are based on the estimated
ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date, after reduction for the recoveries. Delays can
be experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, therefore the ultimate cost of claims
cannot be known with certainty at the reporting date. The liability is not discounted for the time value of money. No
provision for equalisation or catastrophic reserves is recognised. The liability is derecognised when the contract
expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

(iv)  Mathematical reserves

The mathematical reserve is determined by independent actuarial valuation of future policy benefits at the end of each
reporting period. Actuarial assumptions include a margin for adverse deviation and generally vary by type of policy,
year of issue and policy duration. Mortality and withdrawal rate assumptions are based on experience and industry
mortality tables. Adjustments to the balance of the fund are effected by charging to statement of comprehensive
income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
b. Financial liabilities (continued)

Takaful contract liabilities (continued)

(v)  Policyholders’ investment linked contracts at fair value
For unit linked policies, liability is equal to the policy account values. The investment component of these insurance
contracts are designated as at fair value through profit and loss.

Investment contract liabilities

Investment contract liabilities without DPF are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged.
These liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, this being the transaction price excluding any transaction costs
directly attributable to the issue of the contract. Subsequent to initial recognition investment contract liabilities are
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Deposits and withdrawals are recorded directly as an adjustment to the liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position and are not recognised as gross premium or claims in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Fair value adjustments are performed at each reporting date and are recognised in the income statement in “movement
in investment contract liabilities”. For unitised contracts, fair value is calculated as the number of units allocated to
the policyholder in each unit-linked fund multiplied by the unit-price of those funds at the reporting date. The fund
assets and fund liabilities used to determine the unit prices at the reporting date are valued on a fair value basis
adjusted to take account of the effect on the liabilities of the deferred tax on unrealised gains on assets in the fund.

Non-unitised contracts are subsequently also carried at fair value, which is determined by using valuation techniques
such as discounted cash flows and stochastic modelling. Models are validated, calibrated and periodically reviewed
by an independent qualified person.

The liability is derecognised when the contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled. For a contract that can be
cancelled by the policyholder, the fair value of the contract cannot be less than the surrender value.

When contracts contain both a financial risk component and a significant takaful risk component and the cash flows
from the two components are distinct and can be measured reliably, the underlying amounts are unbundled. Any
contributions relating to the takaful risk component are accounted for on the same basis as takaful contracts and the
remaining element is accounted for as a deposit through the consolidated statement of financial position as described
above.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, being their issue proceeds (fair value of consideration received), net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between proceeds
net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Surplus / deficit in policyholders’ fund
Surplus in policyholders’ funds represents accumulated gains on takaful operations and are distributed among the
policyholders. The timing, quantum and the basis of distribution are determined by the Group and are approved by
its Fatwa and Shari’a Supervisory Board.

Deficits in participants’ funds are financed through Qard Hasan by the Group and thereafter fully provided for by the
Group. Accordingly, assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses relating to the policyholders’ funds are recognized in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employees’ end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits to its expatriate employees. The entitlement to these benefits is based
upon the employees’ salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum service period. The
expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

With respect to its UAE national employees, the Group makes contributions to a pension fund established by the
General Pension and Social Security Authority calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s
obligations are limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due.

Retakaful contracts held

The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses. Retakaful contract assets
represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner
consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated with the reinsurer’s policies and are in
accordance with the related retakaful contract.

Retakaful contract assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more frequently, when an indication
of impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when there is objective evidence as a result of an
event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that the Group may not receive all outstanding
amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the
Group will receive from the reinsurer. The impairment loss is recorded in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Gains or losses on buying reinsurance are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income immediately at the date of purchase and are not amortised. Ceded reinsurance arrangements
do not relieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and
expense will not be offset in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income unless required or permitted by
any accounting standard or interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Group.

Offsetting of retakaful receivable and payable balances
The Group discloses the net the receivable or payable position in the consolidated financial statements for each
reinsurer per segment.

Leases

The Group has no finance leases. Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements. They are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised
in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, equity instruments, and non-financial assets such as investment
properties, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value
measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:
- Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
- Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable
- Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation(based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Fair value related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at fair value or
where fair values are disclosed in Note 30.

2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the
future. These factors could include:

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

Classification of properties

Management decides on acquisition whether a property will be used as owner-occupied property or for renting out to
third parties. If used as owner-occupied property, the value in use of the property is determined as part of the cash
generating unit to which it belongs. Otherwise, the asset is classified as investment property and its fair value is
determined on an individual asset basis.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
Judgements (continued)

Classification of investments
Management decides on acquisition of an investment whether it should be classified as of fair value through profit or
loss, at fair value through OCI or at amortised cost.

Claims incurred but not reported
A provision is made for the estimated excess of potential claims over unearned premiums and for claims incurred but
not reported at the financial position date.

The reserves represent the management’s best estimates on the basis of:
a) claims reported during the year
b) delay in reporting these claims
¢) claims handling provision

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below:

Provision for outstanding claims, whether reported or not

Considerable judgement by management is required in the estimation of amounts due to policyholders arising from
claims made under takaful contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based on significant assumptions about several
factors involving varying, and possible significant, degrees of judgement and uncertainty and actual results may differ
from management’s estimates resulting in future changes in estimated liabilities.

In particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the reporting date
and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) at the reporting date. The primary
technique adopted by management in estimating the cost of notified and IBNR claims, is that of using past claim
settlement trends to predict future claim settlement trends.

Claims requiring court or arbitration decisions are estimated individually. Independent loss adjusters normally
estimate property claims. Management reviews its provisions for claims incurred, and claims incurred but not
reported, on a quarterly basis.

Impairment losses on deferred acquisition costs

The Group reviews its deferred acquisitions costs on a regular basis to assess whether a provision for impairment
should be recorded in statement of comprehensive income. In particular, judgement by management is required in
the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provisions required.

Impairment losses on takaful receivables

The Group reviews its takaful receivables on a regular basis to assess whether a provision for impairment should be
recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. In particular, judgement by management is required
in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provisions required.
Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about the probability of default and probable losses in the event
of default, the value of the underlying security, and realisation costs.

In addition to specific provisions against individually significant insurance receivables, the Group also makes a
collective impairment provision against takaful receivables which, although not specifically identified as requiring a
specific provision, have a greater risk of default than when originally granted. The amount of the provision is based
on the historical loss pattern for insurance receivables within each grade and is adjusted to reflect current economic
changes.
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2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Mathematical reserve

The Group values its mathematical reserves based on actuarial valuations which relies on several underlying
assumptions such as government yield curve for growth rates, discount rates and inflation as well as mortality rates,
morbidity, longevity, investment returns, expenses, lapse and surrender rates, discount rates and partial withdrawal
assumptions to estimate the value of insurance contract liabilities on a reasonable basis.

Going concern
The Group’s management has made an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and is
satisfied that the Group has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the
management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Therefore, the consolidated financial statements continue to be prepared on a going
concern basis.

Useful lives of property and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives of its property and equipment for calculating
depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering the expected usage of the asset or physical wear and tear.
Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and future depreciation charge would be adjusted
where the management believes the useful lives differ from previous estimates.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and model inputs such as volatility for longer dated
derivatives and discount rates, prepayment rates and default rate assumptions for asset backed securities. Changes in
assumptions relating to these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2019 2018
Takaful Shareholders’ Takaful Shareholders’
Operations Operations Operations Operations
AED AED AED AED
Cash and bank balances 40,333,140 11,796,580 38,689,584 48,524,453
Deposits 17,250,000 - 22,250,000 14,224,000
57,583,140 11,796,580 60,939,584 62,748,453
Less: Deposits maturing in more than
three months (17,250,000) - (17,250,000) (4,224,000)
Total 40,333,140 11,796,580 43,689,584 58,524,453

The deposits carry profit rates ranging from 1.75% to 2.40% per annum with maturity dates ranging from 20
September 2020 to 28 September 2020.
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Takaful operations’ assets
At fair value through profit or loss (Note 4(a))
Available-for-sale (Note 4(b))

Shareholders’ assets
At fair value through profit or loss (Note 4(a))
Available-for-sale (Note 4(b))

Total

4(a) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Mutual funds

Sukuk investments

Equity investments — quoted
Equity investments — unquoted

Total

2019 2018
AED AED
266,550,462 178,577,125
34,401,899 -
300,952,361 178,577,125
24,079,343 74,733,088
- 32,561,468
24,079,343 107,294,556
325,031,704 285,871,681
2019
Attributable Attributable Attributable
to individual life to to takaful
policyholders  shareholders operations Total
AED AED AED AED
145,045,251 1,734,834 - 146,780,085
32,681,059 - 30,521,013 63,202,072
- - 58,303,139 58,303,139
- 22,344,509 - 22,344,509
177,726,310 24,079,343 88,824,152 290,629,805

The borrowing of AED 10.9 million is from First Abu Dhabi Bank in United Arab Emirates and is utilised to purchase
Sukuks of an equivalent amount, which is pledged against the borrowing. The borrowing carries a profit rate of 1.25%

above the 3-month EIBOR.

Mutual funds

Sukuk investments

Equity investments — quoted
Equity investments — unquoted

Total

2018
Attributable Attributable Attributable
to individual life to to takaful

policyholders shareholders operations Total

AED AED AED AED
95,191,773 263,614 - 95,455,387
22,337,663 14,894,175 45,946,741 83,178,579
- 45,638,532 15,100,948 60,739,480
- 13,936,767 - 13,936,767
117,529,436 74,733,088 61,047,689 253,310,213
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4(a) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Movements during the year were as follows:

At beginning of the year

Purchases during the year

Disposals during the year

Transfer of available-for-sale investments
Change in fair value during the year

Total

At beginning of the year

Purchases during the year

Transfers

Disposals during the year

Change in fair value during the year

Total

4(b) AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE (AFS)

Shares — quoted

2019
Attributable Attributable Attributable
to individual life to to takaful
policyholders  shareholders operation Total
AED AED AED AED
117,529,436 74,733,088 61,047,689 253,310,213
85,456,345 41,673,063 - 127,129,408
(45,390,762) (55,046,930) (16,996,875)  (117,434,567)
- (48,218,101) 48,218,101 -
20,131,291 10,938,223 (3,444,763) 27,624,751
177,726,310 24,079,343 88,824,152 290,629,805
2018
Attributable Attributable Attributable
to individual life to to takaful
policyholders  shareholders operation Total
AED AED AED AED
88,436,028 73,574,944 31,949,793 193,960,765
56,599,170 96,094,630 62,192,325 214,886,125
- (46,925,077) 46,925,077 -
(22,347,210) (77,471,834) (72,633,291)  (172,452,335)
(5,158,552) 29,460,425 (7,386,215) 16,915,658
117,529,436 74,733,088 61,047,689 253,310,213
2019 2018
AED AED
34,401,899 32,561,468

A fair value gain amounting to AED 1.84 million (2018:AED 15.64 million) has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income. As of 31 December 2019, the investment has been transferred from

shareholders’ assets to takaful operations’ assets (refer Note 4(a)).

Investment Concentration

The UAE Insurance Authority has set the maximum limit for aggregate exposure in various investments category. As
at 31 December 2019, the Company has invested over the limit in other invested assets category by AED 2,131,565,
whereas, it has exceeded the sub-limits in all other categories except real estate investments by AED 106,251,396.
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5 TAKAFUL RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

Takaful receivables
Provision for impairment

Receivable from retakaful companies
Prepaid expenses
Other receivables

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
Balance at the beginning of the year
Impairment provision made during the year
Recovery of accounts written off

Bad debts written off

Balance at the end of the year

Takaful receivables and other assets — Inside UAE
Takaful receivables
Provision for impairment — Takaful receivables

Receivable from retakaful companies
Prepaid expenses
Other receivables

Takaful receivables and other assets — Outside UAE
Receivable from retakaful companies

2019
Takaful Shareholder’s
operations operations Total
AED AED AED
163,533,036 - 163,533,036
(22,384,857) - (22,384,857)
141,148,179 - 141,148,179
15,607,025 - 15,607,025
- 2,223,322 2,223,322
51,223,755 23,170,860 74,394,615
207,978,959 25,394,182 233,373,141
21,088,450 - 21,088,450
3,739,560 - 3,739,560
(240,548) - (240,548)
(2,202,605) - (2,202,605)
22,384,857 - 22,384,857
2019
Takaful Shareholder’s
operations operations Total
AED AED AED
163,533,036 - 163,533,036
(22,384,857) - (22,384,857)
141,148,179 - 141,148,179
14,419,431 - 14,419,431
- 2,223,322 2,223,322
51,223,755 23,170,860 74,394,615
206,791,365 25,394,182 232,185,547
1,187,594 - 1,187,594
1,187,594 - 1,187,594
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5 TAKAFUL RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (continued)

Takaful receivables
Provision for impairment

Receivable from retakaful companies
Prepaid expenses
Other receivables

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
Balance at the beginning of the year
Impairment provision made during the year
Bad debts written off

Balance at the end of the year

Takaful receivables and other assets — Inside UAE
Takaful receivables
Provision for impairment — Takaful receivables

Receivable from retakaful companies
Prepaid expenses
Other receivables

Takaful receivables and other assets — Outside UAE
Receivable from retakaful companies

2018
Takaful Shareholder’s
operations operations Total
AED AED AED
132,115,908 - 132,115,908
(21,088,450) - (21,088,450)
111,027,458 - 111,027,458
10,421,404 - 10,421,404
- 4,049,862 4,049,862
9,180,393 30,476,473 39,656,866
130,629,255 34,526,335 165,155,590
15,264,454 - 15,264,454
8,696,793 - 8,696,793
(2,872,797) - (2,872,797)
21,088,450 - 21,088,450
2018
Takaful Shareholder’s
operations operations Total
AED AED AED
132,115,908 - 132,115,908
(21,088,450) - (21,088,450)
111,027,458 - 111,027,458
4,947,640 - 4,947,640
- 4,049,862 4,049,862
9,180,393 30,476,473 39,656,866
125,155,491 34,526,335 159,681,826
5,473,764 - 5,473,764
5,473,764 - 5,473,764
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5 TAKAFUL RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (continued)

The following table provides an ageing analysis of unimpaired receivables and other assets (excluding prepaid

expenses)
2019
Less than 30  30-90 91t0 180 181to 270 271to 365 > 365
days days days days days days Total
AED AED AED AED AED AED AED
Inside UAE:

Takaful receivables 82,052,034 18,058,644 13,018,706 8,248,205 4,865,562 14,905,028 141,148,179
Receivable from

retakaful companies - 9,095 140,686 - 4,856,113 9,413,537 14,419,431
Other receivables - - 74,394,615 - - - 74,394,615
Total 82,052,034 18,067,739 89,777,329 8,248,205 9,721,675 24,318,565 232,185,547
Outside UAE:

Receivable from

retakaful companies - 26,307 138,816 - 47,626 974,845 1,187,594
Total - 26,307 138,816 - 47,626 974,845 1,187,594
2018

Less than 30 30-90 91to 180 18110270 271 to 365 > 365
days days days days days days Total
AED AED AED AED AED AED AED
Inside UAE:

Takaful receivables 68,935,808 5,729,510 16,020,570 9,650,430 8,833,623 1,857,517 111,027,458
Receivable from

retakaful companies - 3,242,149 1,489,891 - 179,244 36,356 4,947,640
Other receivables - - 39,656,866 - - - 39,656,866
Total 68,935,808 8,971,659 57,167,327 9,650,430 9,012,867 1,893,873 155,631,964
Outside UAE:

Receivable from
retakaful companies 1,194,312 238,848 3,169,226 112,500 8,650 750,228 5,473,764

Total 1,194,312 238,848 3,169,226 112,500 8,650 750,228 5,473,764

Unimpaired accounts receivables are expected, on the basis of past experience, to be fully recoverable. It is not the
practice of the Company to obtain collateral over accounts receivable.
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6 TAKAFUL CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND RETAKAFUL CONTRACT ASSETS

Gross takaful contract liabilities

Claims reported

Claims incurred but not reported

Unearned contributions

Mathematical reserves

Policyholders’ investment linked contracts at fair value

Retakaful contract assets

Retakaful share of claims reported

Retakaful share of claims incurred but not reported
Retakaful share of unearned contributions
Retakaful share of mathematical reserve

Net takaful contract liabilities

Claims reported

Claims incurred but not reported

Unearned contributions

Mathematical reserves

Policyholders’ investment linked contracts at fair value

Movement in payable to policyholders of investment linked contracts
Opening balance

Gross contribution

Allocation charges

Redemptions and other charges

Change in fair value

Closing balance

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Land
Residential apartments

Work in progress

2019 2018
AED AED
184,644,225 130,492,669
66,860,214 41,343,887
185,431,102 198,811,908
4,888,383 4,071,000
177,726,310 117,529,436
619,550,234 492,248,900
110,662,993 100,766,807
23,132,191 25,591,191
85,343,296 111,977,162
3,032,684 2,924,629
222,171,164 241,259,789
73,981,232 29,725,862
43,728,023 15,752,696
100,087,806 86,834,746
1,855,699 1,146,371
177,726,309 117,529,436
397,379,069 250,989,111
2019 2018
AED AED
117,529,436 88,436,028
90,828,568 74,756,548
(21,019,577)  (18,157,378)
(29,743,408)  (22,347,210)
20,131,291 (5,158,552)
177,726,310 117,529,436
2019 2018
AED AED
15,401,896 15,000,000
20,290,000 22,500,000
35,691,896 37,500,000
5,698,104 1,421,256
41,390,000 38,921,256
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7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Movement during the year

2019 Residential

Land apartments Total

AED AED AED
Fair value at beginning of the year 15,000,000 22,500,000 37,500,000
Change in fair value during the year 401,896 (2,210,000) (1,808,104)
Fair value at end of the year 15,401,896 20,290,000 35,691,896
2018 Residential

Land apartments Total

AED AED AED
Fair value at beginning of the year 15,000,000 23,540,000 38,540,000
Change in fair value during the year - (1,040,000) (1,040,000)
Fair value at end of the year 15,000,000 22,500,000 37,500,000

The carrying value of land and residential apartments represents its fair value as at 31 December 2019 as determined
by an independent valuation expert, in accordance with relevant appraisal and valuation standards. The basis of
determination of fair value is the amounts for which the property could be exchanged between willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction, based on current prices in an active market for similar properties in the same location and
condition. The date of revaluation was 31 December 2019.

8 DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COST

2019 2018

AED AED
Balance at beginning of the year 63,563,930 49,966,632
Commission paid during the year 54,644,585 50,448,304
Amortisation for the year (46,087,549) (36,851,006)
Balance at the end of the year 72,120,966 63,563,930

As per Article (3) of Section 7 of the Financial Regulations for Takaful Insurance Companies, the shareholders
account should bear all operational, administrative and general expenses for takaful insurance business. Accordingly,
effective from 1 January 2017, the commission incurred related to medical business has been classified in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as attributable to shareholders.

9 STATUTORY DEPOSIT

Statutory deposit is maintained in accordance with the requirements of UAE Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 for the
purpose of carrying on takaful operations in the United Arab Emirates and is not available to finance the day to day
operations of the Company. This deposit carries a profit rate of 3.40% (2018: 3.40%) per annum.

40




Iv

‘(€1 @0N) 9ords 901jJ0 se pasn 9q 0} Surp[ing mau Jo aseyond oy} 10J reqn(] JO Jueq [BIOIOWUIO)) WO} UML) Sem UBO[ UOI[[IW 7'Z€ AV

Y9L8Y0°TS - L89T¥ L80°160°9 609vTH'1 18€°16v° ¢t 810T 1oquaod(] [¢ e ooue[eq
PP8°87S°0S 09b°SSL €SH'8 6ELEBT‘S 798490°1 0€E 9IS €F 6107 12quiddd( € Je duejey
:junowre ulLLIe))
LTILSTIT - 9IS€91 9SS T6L S PPS0T6°1 TISTIES 6107 12quiddd( € Je duejey
(816%) - - - (816%) - Teak oy Surmp syesodsiq
0T8°S0S°¢ - veTee 1LS°€L6 96S°0LE 61+°8T1°C Teak oy 10j uoneroarda(
STT989°L - T8T0€T S86°LI8Y 998°v5S‘1 T60°€8T‘T 810T Jquedd(] [¢ e eouefeq
(LTT'T9TY) - - (6£L°¥99°T) (88%°L6ST) - Teaf ot Sunmp sfesodsiq
125 1L8°C - L9S°€€E 0S6°SHE‘T T16°80€ T60°€8T°T Teak oy 10} uonerardo(
1€6°9L0°6 - S1L°96 PLL'OET 9 Ty Er8 T - 810¢ Arenuef( | je oouefeg
:uonerdaidop pajenuNody
IL6°STLT9 09%°SSL 696°ILY S6TSL6 0T 90+°S86°C I¥8°LI8°Ob 6107 1oquiddd( [ Je Rdueey
(695°S) - - - (695°S) - Teak o Surmp sjesodsiq
165°986°C 09t°SSL - €779 00S°TT 89€°€STC TeaA o) SuLIp suoNIppy
686 V€L 8S - 696°TL1 TLO606°01 SLY'6L6'T €LY VLYY 810 Jquood( | ¢ 1e doue[eq
- (0€1°96S¥1) - - - 0€1°96S vt Surpying pajo[duwion jo sse[oay
(809°CH¥ ) (1yTvLT0OT) - LY1°TTLO 98%°601°1 - SIJSueI],
(L€9°LOS°S) - - (€40°8€8°€) (¥65°699°1) - Teaf ot Sunmp sjesodsiq
IP1°LLES 188°8LL L 69T'8 98+°0S¢€ T91°191 €PE8L Tea o) SuLMp sUONIPpY
£60°80€°8S 06t 160°LY 00L°€91 T8V YLY'L 1TH'8LEE - LT0T }queda( | ¢ 1e doue[eq
aiy aiv aiay aiv aiay aiyv
mog ssaa3o4d up $2]191124 saampxyf puv Juawmdinba suipnng
y10m ppprdn) 1010\ adnpIuan,y aJo

INANDINOA ANV ALYAdOdd 01

610C quiada( 1€V
SINAWHLV.LS TVIONVNId A4LVAI'TOSNOD dHL OL SHLON

Arerpisqns syt pue (DSd) HONVINSNI - LVIVING TNAVIVL

|u._|
e
S5
o<
+— O

.
\



.
takaful
emarat

TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2019

11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Work in
Software Progress Total
AED AED AED

Cost:
Balance at 1 January 2018 10,089,058 - 10,089,058
Additions during the year 1,051,403 2,357,516 3,408,919
Balance at 31 December 2018 11,140,461 2,357,516 13,497,977
Additions during the year 2,575,078 4,335,129 6,910,207
Write Off during the year - (6,692,645) (6,692,645)
Balance at 31 December 2019 13,715,539 - 13,715,539
Accumulated amortisation:
Balance at 1 January 2018 7,883,743 - 7,883,743
Amortisation for the year 716,297 - 716,297
Balance at 31 December 2018 8,600,040 - 8,600,040
Amortisation for the year 933,383 - 933,383
Balance at 31 December 2019 9,533,423 - 9,533,423
Carrying amount:
Balance at 31 December 2019 4,182,116 - 4,182,116
Balance at 31 December 2018 2,540,421 2,357,516 4,897,937

The write-off during the year amounting to AED 6.69 million pertains to purchased application systems which are
deemed unusable by the Company due to the cancelled acquisition of Al Hilal Takaful as of 31 December 2019.

12 TAKAFUL AND OTHER PAYABLES

2019
Takaful Shareholder’s
operations operations Total
AED AED AED
Retakaful payables 152,572,819 24,341,783 176,914,602
Accrued expenses and other payables 37,457,889 33,867,258 71,325,147

190,030,708 58,209,041 248,239,749

2018
Takaful Shareholder’s
operations operations Total
AED AED AED
Retakaful payables 176,474,084 32,135,238 208,609,322
Accrued expenses and other payables 17,258,080 39,582,790 56,840,870

193,732,164 71,718,028 265,450,192
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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12 TAKAFUL AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

2019
Takaful Shareholder’s
operations operations Total
AED AED AED
Inside UAE
Retakaful payables 90,846,573 20,836,439 111,683,012
Payable to insurance agents - 7,320,642 7,320,642
Payable to insurance brokers - 6,724,970 6,724,970
Payable to staff - 965,848 965,848
Other payables 37,457,889 18,855,798 56,313,687

128,304,462 54,703,697 183,008,159

Outside UAE
Retakaful payables 61,726,246 3,505,344 65,231,590
2018
Takaful Shareholder’s
operations operations Total
AED AED AED

Inside UAE
Retakaful payables 135,661,684 25,552,086 161,213,770
Payable to insurance agents - 5,074,813 5,074,813
Payable to insurance brokers - 13,991,661 13,991,661
Payable to staff - 1,837,692 1,837,692
Other payables 17,243,559 18,693,105 35,936,664

152,905,243 65,149,357 218,054,600

Outside UAE
Retakaful payables 40,812,400 6,583,152 47,395,552

13 BORROWINGS

The borrowings of AED 40.32 million (31 December 2018: 53.23 million) consist of two parts. AED 10.92 million
was taken from First Gulf Bank and has been utilised to purchase Tier 1 Sukuks, which are pledged against the
borrowings (Note 4). The value of pledged Sukuks as at 31 December 2019 was AED 12.4 million. The borrowings
carry a profit rate of 2.5% per annum above the 3-month EIBOR and have a maturity period of three months.
AED 35 million loan was taken from Commercial Bank of Dubai in 2017 for the purchase of new building being used
as office space, of which the outstanding principal amount is AED 29.4 million. The decrease of AED 12,911,568 in
the carrying amount during 2019 consists of AED 10,111,567 and AED 2,799,371 of redemption of leveraged sukuk
and repayment of loan from Commercial Bank of Dubai, respectively.

The Company's loan agreement from Commercial Bank of Dubai is subject to a financial covenant clause, whereby
the Company is required to meet an adjusted leverage ratio (net of related parties dues) below 3.5 as per the reporting
date. The Company currently has a 4.4 adjusted leverage ratio based on its 31 December 2019 consolidated financial
statements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to request for immediate repayment
of the outstanding loan amount of AED 29.4 million.

The bank has not requested early repayment of the loan as of the date when these financial statements were approved
by the Board of Directors.
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14  PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

Movement in the provision for employees’ end of service benefits during the year was as follows:

2019 2018
AED AED
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,443,215 2,545,369
Charge for the year 2,368,068 413,904
Paid during the year (1,897,219) (516,058)
Balance at the end of the year 2,914,004 2,443,215
15 SHARE CAPITAL
2019 2018
AED AED
Authorised, issued and fully paid:
150,000,000 ordinary shares of AED 1 each 150,000,000 150,000,000
150,000,000 150,000,000

16 STATUTORY RESERVE
In accordance with the UAE Federal Law No. 2 of 2015, 10% of the net profit of the Company has to be transferred

to a non-distributable legal reserve until such reserve equals 50% of the paid up share capital of the Company.
Accordingly, Nil (2018: AED 1,404,504) has been transferred to the statutory reserve during the year.

17  PROPOSED AND PAID DIVIDENDS

2019 2018
AED AED
Cash dividend for 2019 of AED 0.0825 per share (declared and paid) 10,500,000 -
Cash dividend for 2018 of AED 0.07 per share (declared and paid) - 12,375,000
10,500,000 12,375,000
Proposed for approval at Annual General Meeting:
(2018: Cash dividend of AED 0.0825 per share) - 12,375,000
- 12,375,000

18 ZAKAT

Zakat is payable by the shareholders. Management has informed the shareholders the amount of Zakat payable by
each shareholder. Zakat paid in current year amounted to AED Nil for 2019 and amounted to AED 356,000 for 2018.
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TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2019

21  CHANGE IN RESERVES

Changes in mathematical reserve — takaful life
Change in reserve relating to takaful life products

Change in fair value-individual life policyholders (Note 4)

22  WAKALAH FEES

2019 2018
AED AED
709,328 (1,358,794)
63,897,311 50,685,605
(20,131,291) 5,158,552
44,475,348 54,485,363

Wakalah fees for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to AED 82,137,697 (31 December 2018:

AED 77,922,845).

For group life, individual medical and group medical policies, wakalah fees were charged up to 13.5% to 25% of net
takaful contributions. For life takaful policies, wakalah fees were charged at a maximum of 50% of takaful risk
contributions. Wakalah fees are approved by the Sharia’a Supervisory Board and is charged to the statement of

comprehensive income when incurred.

23  INVESTMENT INCOME - NET

Return on investment in fixed deposits

Realised gain on sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss
Fair value changes on investments at fair value through profit or loss (Note 4)

Dividend income
Investment management charges

Attributable to shareholders
Attributable to policyholders

24 OTHER INCOME

Surrender and other charges on unit linked policies
Others

2019 2018
AED AED
3,152,890 7,070,881

(1,421) 2,729,361
7,493,460 22,316,199
765,000 600,000
(927,593) (840,732)
10,482,336 31,875,709
13,354,175 34,160,387
(2,871,839) (2,284,678)
10,482,336 31,875,709
2019 2018
AED AED
9,083,868 15,719,940
200,080 480,296
9,283,948 16,200,236
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25  GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2019 2018

AED AED
Salaries and other benefits 30,034,832 36,428,874
Third party administrator expenses 19,286,055 12,592,473
Authority fees 7,183,772 6,781,342
Policy overhead expenses 5,091,877 4,744,390
IT expenses 4,447,187 4,223,134
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 10 and 11) 4,439,203 3,587,818
Provision for impairment (Note 5) 2,196,414 6,086,617
Marketing expenses 1,572,180 2,455,945
Legal and professional fees 1,538,645 3,273,342
Rent and related expenses 488,371 1,454,387
Other expenses 10,987,903 5,636,649

87,266,439 87,264,972

Other expenses includes write-off of intangible assets amounting to AED 6.69 million. Refer Note 11.

26  BASIC AND DILUTED PROFIT PER SHARE

2019 2018

AED AED
(Loss)/ profit for the year attributable to shareholders (in AED) (37,846,177) 14,045,044
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 150,000,000 150,000,000
(Loss)/ profit per share (AED) (0.252) 0.09

No figures for diluted earnings per share are presented as the Group has not issued any instruments which would have
an impact on earnings per share when exercised.

27  FATWA AND SHARIA’A SUPERVISORY BOARD

The Company’s business activities are subject to the supervision of a Fatwa and Sharia’a Supervisory Board (FSSB)
appointed by the shareholders. FSSB performs a supervisory role in order to determine whether the operations of the
Company are conducted in accordance with Sharia’a rules and principles.

28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represent, major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Group, and entities
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. The pricing policies and terms of these
transactions are approved by the Group’s management.

The significant balances outstanding at 31 December in respect of related parties included in the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

2019 2018
AED AED
Affiliates of major shareholders:
Due from equity investments - 3,321,526
Deposit 7,373,754 -
Outstanding claims 786,445 1,657,198
Equity Investments — quoted 3,775,038 5,139,436
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28  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued)

The income and expenses in respect of related parties included in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

2019 2018

AED AED
Affiliates of major shareholders:
Contributions 6,066,169 8,831,156
Claims 2,834,185 900,612
Compensation of the key management personnel is as follows:

2019 2018

AED AED
Short term employee benefits 4,607,569 6,535,396
End of service benefits 496,813 571,573

5,104,382 7,106,969

Outstanding balances at the year-end arise in the normal course of business. For the years ended 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2018, the Group has not recorded any impairment of amounts owed by related parties.

29 SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Company is organised into two business segments; takaful and investment operations.
The takaful operations comprise the takaful business undertaken by the Company on behalf of policyholders.
Investment operations comprise investments and cash management for the Company’s own account. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss which in certain respects is measured differently from profit
or loss in the financial statements.

Except for Wakalah fees, allocation charges and Qard Hassan, no other inter-segment transactions occurred during
the year. Segment income, expenses and results include transactions between business segments which will then be
eliminated on consolidation shown below.

2019
Underwriting Shareholders
Medical Life Total Investments Others Total
AED AED AED AED AED AED
Segment revenue 521,693,589 97,899,385 619,592,974 13,354,175 91,421,645 104,775,820
Segment result 48,625,328 24,244,360 72,869,688 13,354,175 91,421,645 104,775,820
Wakala fees (58,165,647) (23,972,050) (82,137,697) - - -
Commission incurred - - - - (46,087,549) (46,087,549)
General and
administrative expenses - - - - (87,266,439) (87,266,439)
Provision for Qard Hassan
to policyholders’ fund. - - - - (9,268,009)  (9,268,009)
(Loss)/ profit attributable
to policyholders /
shareholders (9,540,319) 272,310  (9,268,009) 13,354,175 (51,200,352) (37,846,177)
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29 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

2018
Underwriting Shareholders
Medical Life Total Investments Others Total
AED AED AED AED AED AED
Segment revenue 449,324,223 81,609,343 530,933,566 34,160,387 94,123,081 128,283,468
Segment result 65,237,454 22,562,945 87,800,399 34,160,387 94,123,081 128,283,468
Wakala fees (56,811,283) (21,111,562) (77,922,845) - - -
Commission incurred - - - - (36,851,006) (36,851,006)
General and
administrative expenses - - - - (87,264,972) (87,264,972)
Recovery of Qard Hassan
to policyholders’ fund. - - - - 9,877,554 9,877,554
Profit / (loss) attributable
to policyholders /
shareholders 5,023,816 1,451,384 9,877,554 34,160,387 (20,115,343) 14,045,044
2019
Life Underwriting Shareholders’ Unallocated
Medical and savings total investments others Total Total
AED AED AED AED AED AED AED

Segment assets 602,097,336 307,473,008 909,570,344 35,875,923 84,105,142 119,981,065 1,029,551,409

Segment liabilities 583,441,458 226,139,484 809,580,942 10,922,432 90,523,105 101,445,537 911,026,479

2018
Life  Underwriting Shareholders’ Unallocated
Medical  and savings total investments others Total Total
AED AED AED AED AED AED AED

Segment assets 498,503,974 215,386,965 713,890,939 170,043,009 94,473,036 264,516,045 978,406,984

Segment liabilities 523,409,559 162,571,505 683,981,064 21,034,629 106,360,615 127,395,244 811,376,308

30 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. As such, differences can arise between book values and the fair
value estimates. Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern
without any intention or requirement to materially curtail the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on
adverse terms.

Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost
Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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30 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value
The fair values of assets and liabilities are determined using similar valuation techniques and assumptions as used in
the audited annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position
The following table provides an analysis of assets and liabilities that are measured subsequent to initial recognition
at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED AED AED AED
Assets
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Equity investments - quoted 58,303,139 - - 58,303,139
Equity investments - unquoted - 22,344,509 - 22,344,509
Mutual funds - 146,780,085 - 146,780,085
Sukuk investments 63,202,072 - - 63,202,072
Available-for-sale 34,401,899 - - 34,401,899
Investment property - 41,390,000 - 41,390,000
155,907,110 210,514,594 - 366,421,704
Liabilities
Investment linked contracts - 177,726,310 - 177,726,310
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED AED AED AED
Assets
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Equity investments - quoted 60,739,480 - - 60,739,480
Equity investments - unquoted - - 13,936,767 13,936,767
Mutual funds - 95,455,387 - 95,455,387
Sukuk investments 83,178,579 - - 83,178,579
Available-for-sale 32,561,468 - - 32,561,468
Investment property - 38,921,256 - 38,921,256
176,479,527 134,376,643 13,936,767 324,792,937
Liabilities
Investment linked contracts - 117,529,436 - 117,529,436
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31 POLICY HOLDERS’ FUND

2019 2018
AED AED
Deficit in policy holders’ fund
Balance at the beginning of the year (30,905,151) (40,782,705)
Deficit during the year (9,268,009) 9,877,554
Qard Hassan written off 30,905,151 -
Balance at the end of the year (9,268,009) (30,905,151)
Qard Hassan from shareholders
Balance at beginning of year 30,905,151 40,782,705
Deficit during the year 9,268,009 (9,877,554)
Qard Hassan written off (30,905,151) -
Balance at the end of the year 9,268,009 30,905,151

Total deficit in policyholders’ fund - -

32 RISK MANAGEMENT
(i) Governance framework

The primary objective of the Group’s risk and financial management framework is to protect the Group’s shareholders
from events that hinder the sustainable achievement of financial performance objectives, including failing to exploit
opportunities. Key management recognises the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk management
systems in place.

The Group’s risk management function is carried out by the board of directors, with its associated committees. This
is supplemented with a clear organisational structure with documented delegated authorities and responsibilities from
the board of directors to the Chief Operating Officer and senior managers.

The board of directors meets regularly to approve any commercial, regulatory and organisational decisions. The Chief
Operating Officer under the authority delegated from the board of directors defines the Group’s risk and its
interpretation, limit structure to ensure the appropriate quality and diversification of assets, align underwriting and
reinsurance strategy to the corporate goals, and specify reporting requirements.

The Group’s current enterprise risk management framework is formally documented and divided into three phases.
The Group’s enterprise risk management framework is established to identify and analyse the key risks faced by the
Group to set appropriate controls and manage those risks. As part of the risks identification process, the Group uses
risk based capital model to assess the capital requirement and uses stress analysis to apply changes to capital. The
Group’s risk appetite is derived from the changes to capital.

(ii)  Capital management framework

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to comply with the regulatory requirements in the UAE
and to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group fully complied with the externally imposed capital requirements and no
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2018.

(iii) Regulatory framework

Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of the policyholders and monitor them closely to ensure
that the Group is satisfactorily managing affairs for their benefit. At the same time, the regulators are also interested
in ensuring that the Group maintains an appropriate solvency position to meet unforeseen liabilities arising from
economic shocks or natural disasters.

The operations of the Group are also subject to regulatory requirements within the jurisdiction where it operates. Such
regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities, but also impose certain restrictive provisions
(e.g. capital adequacy) to minimise the risk of default and insolvency on the part of the insurance companies to meet
unforeseen liabilities as these arise.
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32 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(iv)  Asset liability management (ALM) framework

Financial risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements. The Group manages these positions to achieve long-term investment returns
in excess of its obligations under insurance contracts. The principal technique of the Group’s ALM is to match assets
to the liabilities arising from insurance contracts by reference to the type of benefits payable to contract holders.

The Chief Operating Officer actively monitors the ALM to ensure in each period sufficient cash flow is available to
meet liabilities arising from insurance contracts.

The Chief Operating Officer regularly monitors the financial risks associated with the Group’s other financial assets
and liabilities not directly associated with insurance liabilities.

32A Takaful risk

The principal risk the Group faces under takaful contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or the timing
thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits
paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Group is to ensure that
sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of takaful contracts. The variability of
risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use
of retakaful arrangements.

Frequency and amounts of claims

The frequency and amounts of claims can be affected by several factors. The Group underwrites mainly medical,
group life and personal accident risks. These are regarded as short-term takaful contracts as claims are normally
advised and settled within one year of the insured event taking place. This helps to mitigate insurance risk.

Medical, group life and personal accident

Medical insurance is designed to compensate the contract holders for medical costs. Group life and personal accident
insurance entitles the contract holders or their beneficiaries to specified amounts in case of death or permanent or
partial disability. For medical insurance, the main risks are illness and related healthcare costs.

Individual Life

For contracts for which death or disability is the insured risk, the significant factors that could increase the overall
frequency of claims are epidemics, widespread changes in lifestyle and natural disasters, resulting in earlier or more
claims than expected. Group wide reinsurance limits on any single life insured and on all high-risk individuals insured
are in place.

The Group has adequate retakaful arrangements to protect its financial viability against such claims for all the above
classes.

Geographical concentration of risks
The takaful risk arising from takaful contracts is primarily concentrated mainly in the United Arab Emirates. The
geographical concentration of risks is similar to last year.

Retakaful risk

In common with other insurance companies, in order to minimise financial exposure arising from large takaful claims,
the Group, in the normal course of business, enters into arrangements with other parties for retakaful purposes. Such
retakaful arrangements provide for greater diversification of business, allow management to control exposure to
potential losses arising from large risks, and provide additional capacity for growth. A significant portion of the
retakaful is effected under treaty, facultative and excess of loss reinsurance contracts.

Retakaful ceded contracts do not relieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders and as a result the Group
remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails to meet the
obligations under the retakaful agreements.
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32A Takaful risk (continued)

Retakaful risk (continued)
To minimise its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Group evaluates the financial condition
of its reinsurers. The Group deals with reinsurers approved by the Board of Directors.

The three largest reinsurers account for 87% of amounts due from reinsurance companies at 31 December 2019 (2018:
88%).

The Group has a large ceding allowance which covers claim risks, including catastrophic risk. The Group’s reserve
performance is monitored frequently to ensure adequacy of reserves.

32B Financial risk

The Group’s principal financial instruments include financial assets and financial liabilities which comprise financial
investments (at fair value through profit or loss), receivables arising from takaful and retakaful contracts, statutory
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and takaful and other payables.

The Group does not enter into derivative transactions.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk,
profit rate risk and equity price risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. For all classes of financial assets held by the Group, the maximum exposure to credit
risk to the Group is the carrying value as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Group’s exposure to credit risk:

e  The Group only enters into takaful and retakaful contracts with recognised, credit worthy third parties. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivables from takaful and retakaful contracts are monitored on an ongoing basis in order to
reduce the Group’s exposure to bad debts.

e The Group seeks to limit credit risk with respect to agents and brokers by setting credit limits for individual
agents and brokers and monitoring outstanding receivables.

e The Group’s investments at fair value through profit or loss are managed by the Chief Operating Officer in
accordance with the guidance of the Board of Directors.

e The Group’s bank balances are maintained with a range of international and local banks in accordance with
limits set by the management.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the consolidated statement of
financial position:

2019 2018

AED AED
Bank balances 69,379,720 123,688,037
Statutory deposit 4,000,000 4,000,000
Takaful and other receivables 233,373,141 165,155,590
Retakaful share of claims reported and unsettled 110,662,993 100,766,807
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 290,629,805 253,310,213
Available-for-sale 34,401,899 32,561,468

742,447,558 679,482,115

Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates.
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32B Financial risk (continued)

There are no significant exchange rate risks as substantially all financial assets and financial liabilities are
denominated in UAE Dirhams or US Dollars to which the UAE Dirham is pegged.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its commitments associated with insurance contracts
and financial liabilities when they fall due. Liquidity requirements are monitored on a monthly basis.

The maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual repayment
arrangements was as follows:

2019 From
Less than three months Over
three months to one year one year Total
AED AED AED AED
Financial assets
Bank balances 52,129,720 17,250,000 - 69,379,720
Statutory deposit - - 4,000,000 4,000,000
Takaful receivables and other assets 82,052,034 126,027,697 25,293,410 233,373,141
Retakaful share of outstanding claims 110,662,993 - - 110,662,993
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 177,726,310 - 112,903,495 290,629,805
Available-for-sale - - 34,401,899 34,401,899
Total 422,571,057 143,277,697 176,598,804 742,447,558
Financial liabilities
Takaful and other payables 51,318,621 190,905,333 6,015,795 248,239,749
Outstanding claims 184,644,225 - - 184,644,225
Borrowings 40,322,432 - - 40,322,432
Policyholders’ investment linked contracts
at fair value 177,726,310 - - 177,726,310
Total 454,011,588 190,905,333 6,015,795 650,932,716
2018 From
Less than three months Over
three months to one year one year Total
AED AED AED AED
Financial assets
Bank balances 87,214,037 36,474,000 - 123,688,037
Statutory deposit - - 4,000,000 4,000,000
Takaful receivables and other assets 70,130,120 92,381,369 2,644,101 165,155,590
Retakaful share of outstanding claims 100,766,807 - - 100,766,807
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 117,529,436 - 135,780,777 253,310,213
Available-for-sale - - 32,561,468 32,561,468
Total 375,640,400 128,855,369 174,986,346 679,482,115
Financial liabilities
Takaful and other payables 88,239,528 142,756,516 34,454,148 265,450,192
Outstanding claims 130,492,669 - - 130,492,669
Borrowings - - 53,234,001 53,234,001
Policyholders’ investment linked contracts
at fair value 117,529,436 - - 117,529,436
Total 336,261,633 142,756,516 87,688,149 566,706,298

55




.
takaful
emarat

TAKAFUL EMARAT - INSURANCE (PSC)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2019

32 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
32B Financial risk (continued)

Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market profit rates. Floating rate instruments expose the Group to cash flow profit risk, whereas fixed profit rate
instruments expose the Group to fair value profit risk.

The Group is exposed to profit rate risk on certain of its investment in financial instruments held at fair value though
profit or loss, designated upon initial recognition, statutory deposits and bank loan. The Group limits profit rate risk
by monitoring changes in profit rates in the currencies in which its cash and interest bearing investments and
borrowings are denominated.

Increase in  Effect on results

basis points for the year
AED

2019

Profit bearing assets +100 3,141,124
Expense bearing liabilities +100 403,224
2018

Profit bearing assets +100 2,759,349
Expense bearing liabilities +100 532,340

Any movement in profit rates in the opposite direction will produce exactly opposite results.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from profit rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market.

The price risk is managed by outsourcing the trading of securities held by the Company to professional brokers.
However, the activities of brokers are also monitored and supervised by the management.

The following table shows the sensitivity of fair values to 5% increase or decrease as at 31 December:

Favourable Unfavourable
change change
AED AED
2019
At fair value 14,531,490 (14,531,490)
2018
At fair value 12,665,511 (12,665,511)
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32C Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls
fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to
financial loss. The Group cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but through a control framework and by
monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Group is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective
segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes.

Subsequent to yearend, there was a global outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) that has been identified as an event
which might have potential adverse financial consequences. There were no major reported claims in this regard as of
the date of issuance of these consolidated financial statements. Notwithstanding, management has assessed the
potential risks relating to the outbreak, and has taken measures to minimise disruption to business and manage risks
of additional unforeseen claims.

33 CONTINGENCIES

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2019 the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of bank and other guarantees and other matters
arising in the ordinary course of business from which it is anticipated that no material liabilities will arise, amounting
to AED 343,593 (2018: AED 967,537).

Legal claims

The Group, in common with the significant majority of insurers, is subject to litigation in the normal course of its
business. The Group, based on independent legal advice, does not believe that the outcome of these court cases will
have a material impact on the Group’s income or financial condition.

Other Commitments
The Group has lease agreements which are payable as follows:

2019 2018

AED AED
Less than one year 218,594 218,594
34 FINANCIAL REGULATIONS

2019 2018

AED AED
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) 100,000,000 100,000,000
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) 114,741,729 66,484,535
Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) 82,559,465 51,312,363
Own Funds (37,453,744) (36,667,246)
Basic Own Funds (37,453,744) (36,667,246)
MCR Solvency Margin Deficit (137,453,744)  (136,667,246)
SCR Solvency Margin Deficit (152,195,474)  (103,151,780)
MGF Solvency Margin Deficit (120,013,209) (87,979,609)

As per Article (8) of Section 2 of the financial regulations issued for insurance companies in UAE, the Company shall
at all times comply with the requirements of Solvency Margin. As of 31 December 2019, the Company had solvency
deficit of AED 137.5 million as compared to the Minimum Capital Requirements of AED 100 million.
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35  TECHNICAL PROVISION

2019 2018
AED AED
Claims reported and unsettled 184,644,225 130,492,669
Claims incurred but not reported 66,860,214 41,343,887
Unearned contributions 185,431,102 198,811,908
Mathematical reserve 4,888,383 4,071,000
Policyholders’ investment linked contracts at fair value 177,726,310 117,529,436
Technical provisions 619,550,234 492,248,900
Medical business 2019 2018
AED AED
Claims reported and unsettled 156,746,643 103,330,375
Claims incurred but not reported 66,167,274 40,665,866
Unearned contributions 183,099,832 195,583,038
Mathematical Reserve 544,022 -
Technical provisions 406,557,771 339,579,279
Life business 2019 2018
AED AED
Claims reported and unsettled 27,897,582 27,162,294
Claims incurred but not reported 692,940 678,021
Unearned contributions 2,331,270 3,228,870
Mathematical reserve 4,344,361 4,071,000
Policyholders’ investment linked contracts at fair value 177,726,310 117,529,436
Technical provisions 212,992,463 152,669,621

36 SOCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

The Company has not made any social contributions during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018.

37 CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

Since all claims settled are short-term in nature, the claims development schedule is not applicable.

38 COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Reclassification

TPA expenses for non-risk business incurred for 2018 amounting to AED 3,402,354 was reclassified from gross
claims incurred to general and administrative expenses. The reclassification resulted to an adjustment of net surplus
from takaful operations, but without impact on profit attributable to shareholders.
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38 COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Reclassification

TPA expenses for non-risk business incurred for 2018 amounting to AED 3,402,354 was reclassified from gross
claims incurred to general and administrative expenses. The reclassification resulted to an adjustment of net surplus
from takaful operations, but without impact on profit attributable to shareholders.

The following tables summarise the effect of reclassification adjustments on the consolidated financial statements.

31 December 31 December
2018 2018
AED AED
(Reclassified) (Previously
reported)
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Gross claims incurred (382,100,789)  (385,503,143)
Net surplus from takaful operations 9,877,554 6,475,200
General and administrative expenses (87,264,972) (83,862,618)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Deficit in policyholders’ fund (30,905,151) (34,307,505)
Qard Hassan from shareholders 30,905,151 34,307,505

The claim fund accounts classified as other receivables as of 31 December 2018 has been reclassified to other payables

resulting to an increase in total assets and total liabilities of AED 2,207,143.

The following tables summarise the effect of reclassification adjustments on the consolidated financial statements.

31 December 31 December
2018 2018
AED AED
(Reclassified) (Previously
reported)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
TAKAFUL OPERATIONS’ ASSETS
Takaful receivables and other assets 130,629,255 128,407,631
SHAREHOLDERS’ ASSETS
Takaful receivables and other assets 34,526,335 34,540,816
TAKAFUL OPERATIONS’ LIABILITIES AND DEFICIT
Takaful and other payables 193,732,164 191,510,540
SHAREHOLDERS’ LIABILITIES
Takaful and other payables 71,718,028 71,732,509
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